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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Buena Vista House, renamed in 1925 the Cobblestone Inn, is sited on the north-
east corner of East Troy's village square. Located in the southeast quandrant of

the intersection of Church Street with Main Street (State Highway 15), the main
facade of the building faces west.

The large three-story building is about 52 feet long by 37 feet deep and has a
simple gable roof with the ridge running parallel to the main facade. The major
significance of the building depends on its wall comstruction, which is stone with
a veneer of cobblestones laid in regular horizontal, courses separated by tooled
"V''-shaped mortar joints. The lower seven quoins are granite blocks, while above
quoins are dressed limestone. Stylistically the returned roof eaves visible on the

north and south facades and the doorway with sidelights demonstrate the influence
of the Greek Revival. ' 4

A long one-story high porch once ran along the west and north facades supported on
wooden posts. A second Greek Revival doorway was located directly above the existing
one on the second floor. This doorway entered on to a covered balcony integrated
into the porch roof below. The doorway was filled in sometime after World War II

and replaced with two double-hung windows. All the old porches and an original
boardwalk have been removed. (A very similar porch still can be found on the res-
taurant at 2093 North Division Street, East Troy, however.) Today two porch roofs
supported by large, paired brackets cover doors on the west facade, and concrete
steps connect to a modern concrete sidewalk.

The oldest photographs available reveal a standing-seam metal roof similar to that
which remains today. Original windows, probably six-over-six double-hung sash,

have all been replaced with late-nineteenth-century two-over—-two sash or very recent
windows, the latter only on the third floor. A fire escape has been attached to the
north facade, and smail modern frame additions have been attached to the north and
east facades. An original door on the west side of the north facade has been re-
placed with a small window, historic "Buena Vista House" signs have been removed,
and a neon sign reading ''COBBLESTONE" has been hung on the west facade.

A small two-story addition on the south side of the building equals the depth of

the cobblestone structure and is about eleven feet wide. Of unknown antiquity, this
wing is comnected integrally to the interior of the cobblestone building and is very
old, being found on the oldest photographs available. Local oral tradition main-
tains that an opera house once was located to the south of this addition, and that
the residents of the inn could walk directly to the entertainment facility through
this small linkage structure.

The interior has, during the building's 130-year history, been completely altered
numerous times. It is alleged the third floor was a ballroom originally. Today
the third floor, used for light storage, has seven individual rooms and a small
bathroom. The second floor, originally transients' rooms, now contains eight rooms
as living quarter for the owner. The small two-story white frame addition to the
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south of the cobblestone building is connected at the second story, providing

an additional two rooms. The first story contains a pool room and eating area.
It apparently always contained a restaurant, though the size of this operation
and its layout have changed considerably over the years. The shed additions on
the east side of the cobblestone structure contain the kitchen, the bar and other
support facilities.

The drastic change in the layout and appearance of the interior does not materially
affect the nomination, since the exterior construction is the basis for the build-
ing's significance.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Cobblestone Inn is ellglble for listlng on the Natlonal Register in that it is an
excellent and unusual example of a rare method of’ construction.

Cobblestone walls are normally built of quarried stone, sometimes fieldstone, with a
relatively thin veneer of small exposed stones laid in regular horizontal courses

with a mortar joint, of varying profile, separating them. Apparently cobblestone con-
struction originated with masons working on the Erie Canal3, though European precedents
could be claimed, such as in medieval flint construction in England. The tight, hori-
zontally ordered construction found in the Cobblestone Inn, however, seems to be

unique to a few areas near the Great Lakes and to result from the migrations of Western
New York masons once associated in some way with the canal's construction. With the
completion of the camal in 1925, the Western New York area was overpopulated with
masons in need of work. Some bought farms nearby and built houses, resulting in the
construction of numerous cobblestone buildings in the area. Others apparently left,
taking their skills with them and building cobblestone structures in Wisconsin, Illi-
nois, Michigan and Ontario.

The construction of Buena Vista House, as the bulldlng was originally called, was
begun by 36-year-old mason Samuel R. Bradley in 1846 using stones for facing gathered
from nearby lakes. Bradley was born in Massachusetts and prgbably .came to Wisconsin
via New York, where he married Hannah, four years his junior. Bradley was also the
original owner and proprietor of the inn but sold the building around 1852.

Building a cobblestone wall was a laborious process requiring skills which were
shrouded in secrecy by the masons who built them. Cobblestones were generally em-
ployed only on the most public facades of a house to minimize the masonry work and
because cobblestone construction was thought to be decorative. Though the size of

a building is not ordinarily of significance, it assumes greater importance when
dealing with this form of construction. The Cobblestone Inn is the largest cobblestone
building in Wisconsin, and due to its monumentality warrants nomination at the state
level of significance. While information is not available to enable judgement of the
building's size with respect to other such structures in the nation, the Cobblestone
Inn is one of the largest buildings included in Schmidt's six-state and one-province
inventory of over 500 examples, Cobblestone Masonry.

1

Mitchell, p. 12
2Schmidt, p. 220
3Schmidt, p. 1-3
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The nomination comprises Cobblestone Inn, its rear additions, and the small wing

to the south. This consists of the property in the southeast quarter of the inter-
section of Church Street and Main Street, 77 feet in the north-south dimension and
63 feet in the east-west direction.
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